
 
 

Licensing (Licensing and Gambling) Sub-
Committee 

 
 

 Wednesday, 12th January, 2022 
at 3.00 pm 

PLEASE NOTE TIME OF MEETING 
 

Virtual Meeting 
 

This meeting is open to the public 
 
 

 Members 
 

 Three Members drawn from the Licensing 
Committee 
 

 
 Contacts 

 
 Democratic Support Officer 

Maria McKay  
Email: maria.mckay@southampton.gov.uk  

  

 Executive Director Communities, Culture & 
Homes 

 Mary D’Arcy 

 Tel: 023 8083 4611 
Email: mary.d’arcy@southampton.gov.uk  

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:pat.wood@southampton.gov.uk
mailto:mitch.sanders@southampton.gov.uk


 

 
 PUBLIC INFORMATION 

The Members of the Licensing Committee are Councillors, G Galton, B Harris, Laurent, Leggett, 
McEwing, Noon, J Payne, Spicer, Stead and Streets. 
Terms of Reference Southampton: Corporate Plan 2020-2025 sets out 

the four key outcomes: 

 Communities, culture & homes - Celebrating 
the diversity of cultures within Southampton; 
enhancing our cultural and historical offer 
and using these to help transform our 
communities. 

 Green City - Providing a sustainable, clean, 
healthy and safe environment for everyone. 
Nurturing green spaces and embracing our 
waterfront. 

 Place shaping - Delivering a city for future 
generations. Using data, insight and vision to 
meet the current and future needs of the city. 

 Wellbeing - Start well, live well, age well, die well; 
working with other partners and other services to 
make sure that customers get the right help at 
the right time 

Fire Procedure:- In the event of a fire or other 
emergency a continuous alarm will sound, and you will 
be advised by Council officers what action to take. 
Access:- Access is available for disabled people. 
Please contact the Democratic Support Officer who will 
help to make any necessary arrangements. 
Smoking policy:- The Council operates a no-smoking 
policy in all civic buildings. 

Mobile Telephones:- Please switch your mobile 
telephones to silent whilst in the meeting  
Use of Social Media:- The Council supports the video 
or audio recording of meetings open to the public, for 
either live or subsequent broadcast. However, if, in the 
Chair’s opinion, a person filming or recording a meeting 
or taking photographs is interrupting proceedings or 
causing a disturbance, under the Council’s Standing 
Orders the person can be ordered to stop their activity, 
or to leave the meeting.  By entering the meeting room, 
you are consenting to being recorded and to the use of 
those images and recordings for broadcasting and 
or/training purposes. The meeting may be recorded by 
the press or members of the public.  Any person or 
organisation filming, recording or broadcasting any 
meeting of the Council is responsible for any claims or 
other liability resulting from them doing so.  Details of the 
Council’s Guidance on the recording of meetings is 
available on the Council’s website. 

 
Dates of Potential Meetings Municipal Year 
2021/22 
Meetings are scheduled on a weekly basis usually 
at 4pm on a Wednesday evening. 

The Sub-Committee deals with 
licences for which the Council is 
responsible under the Licensing Act 
2003 and Gambling Act 2005, 
including:- 

 Determination of applications for 
review of premises licences and 
club premises certificates; 

 Determination of representations to 
applications for premises licences 
and club premises certificates, 
variations and various permits;  

 Determination of police objections 
to applications for: 

 Variation of designated 
premises supervisors 

 Transfer of premises licences 

 Personal licences for the sale of 
alcohol 

 Determination of objections to 
temporary event notices. 

Relevant Representations  
Those who have made relevant 
representations may address the 
meeting about the matter in which they 
have an interest.  New matters, not 
raised within a written representation, 
can not be relied upon at the hearing. 
When dealing with Licensing Act 
matters the Sub-Committee must 
only take into account  the following 
statutory Licensing Objectives:-  

 prevention of crime and disorder 

 public safety  

 prevention of public nuisance 

 protection of children from harm 
Likewise, when dealing with 
Gambling Act matters the Sub 
Committee must only take into 
account the statutory Licensing 
Objectives below:-  

 Preventing gambling from being a 
source of crime or disorder, being 
associated with crime or disorder or 
being used to support crime 

 Ensuring that gambling is 
conducted in a fair and open way, 
and 

 Protecting children and other 
vulnerable persons from being 
harmed or exploited by gambling 



 

 
CONDUCT OF MEETING 

 

Terms of Reference  
 

The terms of reference are contained in 
the Council’s Constitution. 
 

Business to be discussed 
 

Only those items listed on the attached 
agenda may be considered at this meeting. 

 
Rules of Procedure 
 

The meeting is governed by the 
Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) 
Regulations 2005 and the Council 
Procedure Rules as set out in Part 4 of 
the Constitution, so far as it is applicable. 

Quorum 3 
 

The minimum number of appointed Members 
required to be in attendance to hold the 
meeting is 3. 

 

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS 

Members are required to disclose, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct, 
both the existence and nature of any “Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” or “Other Interest”  
they may have in relation to matters for consideration on this Agenda. 

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS 

A Member must regard himself or herself as having a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in 
any matter that they or their spouse, partner, a person they are living with as husband or 
wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they were a civil partner in relation to:  

(i) Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

(ii) Sponsorship: 

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from Southampton 
City Council) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expense 
incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election expenses. 
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning of 
the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 

(iii) Any contract which is made between you / your spouse etc (or a body in which the 
you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interest) and Southampton City Council under 
which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed, and which has 
not been fully discharged. 

(iv) Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of Southampton. 

(v) Any license (held alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 
Southampton for a month or longer. 

(vi) Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) the landlord is Southampton City Council and 
the tenant is a body in which you / your spouse etc has a beneficial interests. 

(vii) Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where that body (to your knowledge) 
has a place of business or land in the area of Southampton, and either: 

a) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the 
total issued share capital of that body, or 

b) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal value 
of the shares of any one class in which you / your spouse etc has a beneficial 
interest that exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 

 



 

 

Other Interests 

 

A Member must regard himself or herself as having an ‘Other Interest’ in any 
membership of, or occupation of a position of general control or management in: 

Any body to which they  have been appointed or nominated by Southampton City Council 

Any public authority or body exercising functions of a public nature 

Any body directed to charitable purposes 

Any body whose principal purpose includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

Principles of Decision Making 

All decisions of the Council will be made in accordance with the following principles:- 

 proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the desired outcome); 

 due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers; 

 respect for human rights; 

 a presumption in favour of openness, accountability and transparency; 

 setting out what options have been considered; 

 setting out reasons for the decision; and 

 clarity of aims and desired outcomes. 

In exercising discretion, the decision maker must: 

 understand the law that regulates the decision-making power and gives effect to it.  
The decision-maker must direct itself properly in law; 

 take into account all relevant matters (those matters which the law requires the 
authority as a matter of legal obligation to take into account); 

 leave out of account irrelevant considerations; 

 act for a proper purpose, exercising its powers for the public good; 

 not reach a decision which no authority acting reasonably could reach, (also known as 
the “rationality” or “taking leave of your senses” principle); 

 comply with the rule that local government finance is to be conducted on an annual 
basis.  Save to the extent authorised by Parliament, ‘live now, pay later’ and forward 
funding are unlawful; and 

 act with procedural propriety in accordance with the rules of fairness. 

 



 

 

AGENDA 

 

 

 
1   ELECTION OF CHAIR  

 
 To appoint a Chair for the purposes of this meeting. 

 
2   APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY)  

 
 To note any changes in the membership of the Sub-Committee made in accordance 

with the Licensing Act 2003. 
 

3   DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL AND PECUNIARY INTERESTS  
 

 In accordance with the Localism Act 2011, and the Council’s Code of Conduct, 
Members to disclose any personal or pecuniary interests in any matter included on the 
agenda for this meeting. 
 

4   STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIR  
 

5   EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC - LEGAL ADVICE  
 

 At a predetermined point during the consideration of all items the Sub-Committee may 
move into private session in order to receive legal advice when determining issues. 
The parties to the hearing, press and the public, unless otherwise excluded by the 
Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005, will be invited to return immediately 
following that private session at which time the matter will be determined and the 
decision of the Sub-Committee will be announced. 
 

6   APPLICATION FOR NEW PREMISES LICENCE - DESIGN CHAPEL, CEMETERY 
ROAD, SOUTHAMPTON SO15 7AF (Pages 1 - 140) 
 

Tuesday, 4 January 2022 Executive Director Communities, Culture & Homes 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



DECISION-MAKER LICENSING (LICENSING & GAMBLING) SUB COMMITTEE 

SUBJECT       HEARING TO CONSIDER AN APPLICATION FOR GRANT OF A 
PREMISES LICENCE – Design Chapel Cemetery Road 
Southampton SO15 7AF 

DATE OF HEARING Wednesday 12 January 2022 15.00pm 
 REPORT OF SERVICE DIRECTOR – COMMUNITIES,CULTURE AND HOMES 

E-mail licensing@southampton.gov.uk 

Application Date : 15th November 2021 Application Received 15th November 2021 

Application Valid : 15th November 2021 Reference : 2021/03910/01SPRN 

© Crown copyright and database rights 2014 Ordnance Survey 100019679 

Representations from Responsible Authorities
Responsible Authority Satisfactory? 

Safeguarding Children 
 Yes 

Fire Service 
 Yes 

Environmental Health - Licensing 
 No Response 

Home Office 
 No Response 

001
Page 1

Agenda Item 6



  

 

Building Control 
 No Response 

 

Public Health Manager 
 No Response 

 

Police - Licensing 
 No Response 

 

Trading Standards 
 No Response 

Other Representations 
Name Address Contributor Type 

 
 Ms. Barbara Sheppard 

80 Gordon Avenue 
Southampton 
SO14 6WD 

Resident  

     
 Ms. Elizabeth O'Sullivan 

11 Westfield Road 
Southampton 
SO15 4HQ 

Resident  

     
 Mr. Colin Russell 

9 Cotsalls 
Fair Oak 
Eastleigh 
Hampshire SO50 7HP 

Resident  

 Andrew and Elaine   
Freezer 

36E Castle Way 
Southampton 
SO14 2AW 

Resident  

     
 Mr. Alan French 

19 Atherley Court 
Southampton 
SO15 7NG 

Resident  

    
 Mr. Christopher Tong 

22 Kineton Road 
Southampton 
SO15 7PQ 

Resident  

     
 Mrs. J M Weatherall 

3 Maddison Street 
Southampton 
SO14 2BN 

Resident  

     
 Mr. John Avery 

Flat 2 
Beech Court 
Beech Avenue 
Southampton  SO18 4TS 

Resident  

002
Page 2



  

     
 Ms. Marion Hubble 

Flat 15 
Guildhall Apartments 
10 Park Walk 
Southampton 
SO14 7BL 

Resident  

     
 GW and CV Nutt 

2 Bluebell Way 
Bishops Waltham 
SO32 1QW 

Resident  

     
 Ms. Linda Welch 

68 Robinia Green 
Southampton 
SO16 8EQ 

Resident  

     
 Mrs Julie Gwilt 

Flat 10 
Sandell Court 
The Parkway 
Southampton 
SO16 3PH 

Resident  

     
Heather White and Rosie 
Zambra 

Consumer Protection and Bereavement 
Services 
Southampton City Council 
Civic Centre 
SO14 7LY 

Manager  

     
 Ms. Allyson Hayes 

63 Avenue Road 
Southampton 
SO14 6TW 

Resident  

     
 Ms. Cathy Monroe 

Flat 2 
Canada Place 
461 Winchester Road 
Southampton 
SO16 7NZ 

Resident  

     
 Dr Margaret Chiari 

9 Highcliff Avenue 
Southampton 
SO14 0TN 

Resident  

     
 Mr. Derek Goodchild 

122 Upper Shirley Avenue 
Southampton 
SO15 5NN 
 

Resident  

003
Page 3



  

     
 Ms. Vicki Blow 

Flat 4 
Riverbourne Court 
62 Whitworth Crescent 
Southampton 
SO18 1GD 

Resident  

     
 Ms. Angela Houghton 

2 Methuen Street 
Southampton 
SO14 6FN 

Resident  

     
 Ms. Ann Goodchild 

122 Upper Shirley Avenue 
Southampton 
SO15 5NN 

Resident  

     
 Ms. Shirley Wakley 

18 Evelyn Crescent 
Southampton 
SO15 5JE 

Resident  

     
 Ms. Lizzi Lewis 

First Floor Flat 
4 Edward Road 
Southampton 
SO15 3GZ 

Resident  

     
 Ms. Hazel Brook 

16 Wilton Crescent 
Southampton 
SO15 7QP 

Resident  

     
 Ms. Olivia Kent 

467 Burgess Road 
Southampton 
SO16 3BL 

Resident  

     
 Mr. Denis Goodwin 

12 Cavendish Grove 
Southampton 
SO17 1XE 

Resident  

     
Ms. Ewa Evans 

32 Atherley Court 
Southampton 
SO15 7NG 

Resident  

     
 Oliver Morris, Stephanie 
Jones and Hannah 
Morris 

19 Northlands Gardens 
Southampton 
SO15 2NL 

Resident  

     
 Ms. Alexandra Scott 

16 Atherley Court 
Southampton 
SO15 7NG 

Resident  

004
Page 4



  

     
 Mr. Ian Warrington 

28 Atherley Court 
Southampton 
SO15 7NG 

Resident  

     
 Mr. Kevin Roe 

8 Atherley Court 
Southampton 
SO15 7NG 

Resident  

     
 Mr. Stephen Barnes-
Andrews 

The Coachhouse 
11B Thorold Road 
Southampton 
SO18 1HZ 

Resident  

     
 Ms. Caroline Roe 

15 Atherley Court 
Southampton 
SO15 7NG 

Resident  

     
Ms. Amanda Barnes-
Andrews 

The Coachhouse 
11B Thorold Road 
Southampton 
SO18 1HZ 

Resident  

     
 Ms. Hilary Jackson 

39 Gordon Avenue 
Southampton 
SO14 6WH 

Resident  

     
 Mr. Peter Courtney 

153 Hill Lane 
Southampton 
SO15 7NP 

Resident  

     
 Ms. Kate Martin 

83 Dean Road 
Southampton 
SO18 6AQ 

Resident  

     
 Mr. Graham Linecar 

Southampton Commons Parks and Protection 
Society (SCAPPS) 
3 Highfield Road  
Southampton  
SO17 1NX 

Local 
Neighbourhood 
Group 

     
 Mr. Roger Ottewill 

15 Atherley Court 
Southampton 
SO15 7NG 

Resident  

     
 Ms. L Sanders 

10 Warwick Road 
Southampton SO15 7PE 

Resident  

005
Page 5



 Mr. Russell Soper 
25 Atherley Court 
Southampton 
SO15 7NG 

Resident 

 Mr. Frank Clewlow 
9 Northlands Gardens 
Southampton 
SO15 2NL 

Resident 

 Ms. Elizabeth Roles 
47 York Road 
Southampton 
SO15 3GJ 

Resident 

 Mr. Mark Meredith 
3 Northlands Gardens 
Southampton 
SO15 2NL 

Resident 

 Mr and Mrs Wade 
10 Northlands Gardens 
Southampton 
SO15 2NL 

Resident 

 Ms. Denise Roynon 
22 Atherley Court 
Southampton 
SO15 7NG 

Resident 

 Ms. Carol Cunio 
Hon Alderman 
6 Julian Road 
Southampton 
SO19 8LZ 

Resident 

 Ms. Susan Swallow 
78 Gordon Avenue 
Southampton 
SO14 6WD 

Resident 

 Ms. Lindsay 
Heathershaw 

48 Stratton Road 
Southampton 
SO15 5QZ 

Resident 

 Ms. Valerie Ottewill 
15 Atherley Court 
Southampton 
SO15 7NG 

Resident 

 Dr. Marianne Smethurst 
18 Northlands Gardens 
Southampton 
SO15 2NL 

Resident 

006
Page 6



  

 Ms. Monica Parish Flat 3 
Albany Park Court 
4 Winn Road 
Southampton 
SO17 1EN 

Resident  

     
 Canon Vincent Harvey 

Portsmouth Diocese 
14 Rockstone Place 
Southampton 
SO15 2EQ 

Local 
Neighbourhood 
Group 

   
Ms Dawn Chiari 

67 Blenheim Avenue 
Highfield 
Southampton 
SO17 1QS 

Resident  

 Jennifer and Geoffrey 
Dawes 

31 Hanley Road 
Southampton 
SO15 5AP 

Resident  

     
  Mr. Tim Sluckin 

Southampton Hebrew Congregation 
Mordaunt Road  
Southampton 
SO14 6FW 

Local 
Neighbourhood 
Group 

     
 Dr. Surender K Sharma 

21 Shooters Hill Close 
Southampton 
SO19 1FW 

Resident  

     
 Kara and Richard 
Congreve 

6A Northlands Gardens 
Southampton 
SO15 2NL 

Resident  

     
 Ms. Anne Clewlow 

9 Northlands Gardens 
Southampton 
SO15 2NL 

Resident  

     
 Ms. Annie Durwood 

25 Atherley Court 
Southampton 
SO15 7NG 

Resident  

 Prof. Tony Kushner History Department 
University of Southampton 
Southampton 
SO17 1BJ 

Resident  

007
Page 7



Ms. Barbara Claridge 
Highfield Residents Association 
Apartment 1  
Towan Place 
11 Westwood Road 
Highfield 
SO17 1DL 

Local 
Neighbourhood 
Group 

 Ms. Maggie Rance 
12 Raymond Road 
Southampton 
SO15 5AJ 

Resident 

 Ms. Elizabeth Davies 
9 Pentire Way 
Southampton 
SO15 7RW 

Resident 

 Mrs. Ann Grimble 
56 Shaftesbury Avenue 
Southampton 
SO17 1SD 

Resident 

 Mr. Andrew Hetherton 
352 Hill Lane 
Southampton 
SO15 7PH 

Resident 

 Prof. Robert Grimble 
56 Shaftesbury Avenue 
Southampton 
SO17 1SD 

Resident 

 Mr. Tony Stoller 
16 Denham Close 
Winchester 
SO23 7BL 

Resident 

 Prof. Jenny Fleming 
University of Southampton 
Social and Human Sciences 
Murray Building, Bldng 58  
Highfield Campus 
Southampton 
SO17 1BJ 

Resident 

 Mr. Derek Browning 9 Maybush Road 
Southampton 
SO16 9ET 

Resident 

008
Page 8



  

 Ms. Susan Goldsmith 7 Pewsey Place 
Upper Shirley  
Southampton 
SO15 7RX 

Resident  

 Mr. Rachel and Philip 
McCullagh 

36 Radway Road 
Southampton 
SO15 7PJ 
 

Resident  

     
Friends of Southampton 
Old Cemetery 

Billy and Val 
1 Lancaster Road  
Maybush 
Southampton 
SO16 5DN 

Local 
Neighbourhood 
Group 

 
 Legal Implications 

The legislation specifically restricts the grounds on which the sub-committee may refuse an applicati  
for grant of a premises licence, or impose conditions. The legislation provides for a presumption of 
grant of an application for a premises licence, subject to the determination of the application with a 
view to promoting the licensing objectives in the overall interests of the local community. In doing so 
the sub-committee must give appropriate weight to: 

• the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives; 

• the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the parties; 

• its own statement of licensing policy 

• the Statutory Guidance 
An application may be refused in part and thereby only permit some of the licensable activities 
sought. 
An applicant for grant of a premises licence whose application has been refused, or who is 
aggrieved by conditions imposed, may appeal against the decision to the Magistrates' Court. Any 
other person, who made a valid representation, may appeal to the Magistrates’ Court against the 
decision to grant the application or against any conditions imposed. 
In considering this application the sub-committee is obliged to consider the application in 
accordance, in particular, with both the Licensing Act 2003(Hearings) Regulations 2005 (as 
amended) and the rules of natural justice 
The practical effect of this is that the sub-committee must makes its decision based on evidence 
submitted in accordance with the legislation and give adequate reasons for reaching its decision. 
Only persons that made relevant representations or their representative, within the time limits, will be 
allowed to present evidence and this will be restricted to the points raised in their written 
representation. Any evidence used to expand upon specific points already raised in a written 
representation should be served upon all parties in good time before the hearing date in order to 
allow proper consideration. A failure to properly serve any such additional evidence in advance is 
likely to mean it cannot be produced or relied up at the hearing. 
The sub-committee must also have regard to: 

• The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 

009
Page 9



  

Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places the sub-committee under a duty 
to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of 
those functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent, crime and 
disorder in its area. 

• The Human Rights Act 1998 
The Act requires UK legislation to be interpreted in a manner consistent with the 
European Convention on Human Rights. It is unlawful for the sub-committee to act in a 
way that is incompatible (or fail to act in a way that is compatible) with the rights 
protected by the Act. Any action undertaken by the sub-committee that could have an 
effect upon another person’s Human Rights must be taken having regard to the 
principle of proportionality - the need to balance the rights of the individual with the 
rights of the community as a whole. Any action taken by the sub-committee which 
affect another's rights must be no more onerous than is necessary in a democratic 
society. The matters set out in this report must be considered in light of the above 
obligations. 

Copies of the application for grant of a premises licence and the representations to it are annexed to 
this report. 

 

Equality Act 2010 
Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 requires the Council to have due regard to the need to 
eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that is prohibited by or 
under this Act.  It also requires the Council to advance equality of opportunity and foster good 
relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not 
share it.   This means having due regard to the need to removing or minimising disadvantages 
suffered, taking steps to meet the needs of persons, encouraging persons to participate in public 
life, tackling prejudice and promoting understanding.  The relevant protected characteristics are: 
age; disability; gender reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; sexual 
orientation. 
 

 SUMMARY 
 
This building is a converted chapel that is currently used as offices.  The applicant states 
the ground floor of this building to be used as a business hub for business events, 
breakfast meetings and training during the day and for evening gatherings for committees 
and groups to meet.  Potentially to extend this to weekend events within what would be 
deemed office business. 
 
Applicant  3 Men Squared Ltd.     
Designated Premises Supervisor  Chris Orr  

 
Licensable Activities. 
 Live music 
 Monday         12:00  - 23:00 
 Tuesday   12:00  - 23:00 
 Wednesday   12:00  - 23:00 
 Thursday   12:00  - 23:00 
 Friday   12:00  - 23:00 
 Saturday   12:00  - 23:00 
 Sunday   12:00  - 23:00 
  
 
 

010
Page 10



  

Recorded music 
 Monday   12:00  - 23:00 
 Tuesday   12:00  - 23:00 
 Wednesday   12:00  - 23:00 
 Thursday   12:00  - 23:00 
 Friday   12:00  - 23:00 
 Saturday   12:00  - 23:00 
 Sunday   12:00  - 23:00 
  
Supply by retail of alcohol 
 Monday   12:00  - 23:00 
 Tuesday   12:00  - 23:00 
 Wednesday   12:00  - 23:00 
 Thursday   12:00  - 23:00 
 Friday   12:00  - 23:00 
 Saturday   12:00  - 23:00 
 Sunday   12:00  - 23:00 
 
 

 
There have been 73 Public representations for this application.  There have been none 
from the Responsible Authorities. 
 
Included in the Report 
 
Application 
Plan 
73 Representations 
Hearing Procedures 

 

011
Page 11



SOUTHAMPTON AND EASTLEIGH LICENSING PARTNERSHIP 
 Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 
 
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.  If you 
are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals.  In all cases 
ensure that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink.  Use additional 
sheets if necessary. 
 
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records. 
 
 
I/We 3 Men Squared Limited 
         (Insert name(s) of applicant)  
apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the 
premises described in Part 1 below (the premises) and I/we are making this 
application to you as the relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12 
of the Licensing Act 2003 
 
Part 1 – Premises details 
  

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 
The Design Chapel 
Cemetery Road 

Post 
town Southampton Postcode SO15 7AF 

 
Telephone number at premises (if 
any)    

Non-domestic rateable value of 
premises £15750 

 
Part 2 - Applicant details 
 
Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as        Please tick as 
appropriate 
 

a) an individual or individuals *  please complete section (A) 

b) a person other than an individual *   

 i as a limited company/limited liability 
partnership 

 please complete section (B) 

 ii as a partnership (other than limited 
liability) 

 please complete section (B) 

 iii as an unincorporated association or  please complete section (B) 

 iv other (for example a statutory 
corporation) 

 please complete section (B) 

c) a recognised club  please complete section (B) 

d) a charity  please complete section (B) 

012
Page 12



e) the proprietor of an educational 
establishment 

 please complete section (B) 

f) a health service body  please complete section (B) 

g) 
 
 
 
ga) 
 

a person who is registered under Part 2 of 
the Care Standards Act 2000 (c14) in 
respect of an independent hospital in Wales 
 
a person who is registered under Chapter 2 
of Part 1 of the Health and Social Care Act 
2008 (within the meaning of that Part) in an 
independent hospital in England 
 

 
 
 
 

 

please complete section (B) 
 
 
 
please complete section (B) 

h) the chief officer of police of a police force in 
England and Wales 

 please complete section (B) 

 
* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm (by ticking yes 
to one box below):     
 
I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of 
the premises for licensable activities; or  

I am making the application pursuant to a   
 statutory function or  
 a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative  

 
(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable) 
 

Mr  
 

Mrs  
 

Miss  
 

Ms  
 

Other Title 
(for example, 
Rev) 

      
 

Surname 
      

First names 
      

Date of birth                                    I am 18 years old or over  
 Please tick yes 

Nationality        

Current residential 
address if different 
from premises 
address 

      

Post town       Postcode       

Daytime contact telephone 
number       

E-mail address 
(optional)       

Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to 
work checking service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that 
service (please see note 15 for information) 
 
           

013
Page 13



 

 
SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable) 
 

Mr  
 

Mrs  
 

Miss  
 

Ms  
 

Other Title 
(for example, 
Rev) 

      
 

Surname 
      

First names 
      

Date of birth                                 I am 18 years old 
or over  Please tick yes 

Nationality        
Where applicable (if demonstrating a right to work via the Home Office online right to 
work checking service), the 9-digit ‘share code’ provided to the applicant by that 
service: (please see note 15 for information) 
 
           
 

Current residential 
address if different 
from premises 
address 

      

Post town       Postcode       

Daytime contact telephone 
number       

E-mail address 
(optional)       

 
 
(B) OTHER APPLICANTS 
 
Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full.  Where 
appropriate please give any registered number.  In the case of a partnership or 
other joint venture (other than a body corporate), please give the name and 
address of each party concerned. 
 

Name 
3 Men Squared Limited 
Address 
The Design Chapel, Cemetery Road, Southampton SO15 7AF 

Registered number (where applicable) 
10423292 

014
Page 14



Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated 
association etc.) 
Limited Company 

Telephone number (if any)  
 

E-mail address (optional) 
 

 
Part 3 Operating Schedule 

When do you want the premises licence to start? DD MM YYYY 
0  1  0  1  2  0  2  2  

 

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, 
when do you want it to end? 

DD MM YYYY 
                

 

 
 

Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note 1) 
A converted chapel that is used as office. The ground floor has recently been 
represented as a co-worker space and we are offering the space for events - breakfast 
networking and cpd and training events 7am to 9am and then for evening gatherings 
from 6pm; for committees and groups to meet. And potentially weekend events also. It 
is an office/work space and therefore has limitations for event use - it will not for 
instance accommodate a dance with a large central table in the ground floor space 
that does not move. 

 
If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises 
at any one time, please state the number expected to attend. 0 

 

 
What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises? 
 
(please see sections 1 and 14 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003) 
 

Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 
2)         

Please tick all 
that apply 

a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)  

b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)  

c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)  

d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)  

e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)  

015
Page 15



f) recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)  

g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)  

h) anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)  
(if ticking yes, fill in box H)  

 

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)   

Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J)  

 
In all cases complete boxes K, L and M

016
Page 16



A 
 

Plays  
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Will the performance of a play take place 
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 
(please read guidance note 3)   
 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 
      

            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read 
guidance note 5) 
                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 
for the performance of plays at different times to those listed in 
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 
      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            
 

017
Page 17



B 
 

Films  
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Will the exhibition of films take place 
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 
(please read guidance note 3)  
 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 
      

            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please 
read guidance note 5) 
                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 
for the exhibition of films at different times to those listed in the 
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 
      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            
 

018
Page 18



C 
 

Indoor sporting events  
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Please give further details (please read guidance note 4) 
      

Day Start Finish 

Mon             

            

Tue             State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please 
read guidance note 5) 
                  

Wed             

            

Thur             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 
for indoor sporting events at different times to those listed in the 
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 
      

            

Fri             

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            
 

019
Page 19



D 
 

Boxing or wrestling 
entertainments  
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 
 

Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment 
take place indoors or outdoors or both – 
please tick (please read guidance note 3)   
 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 
      

            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling 
entertainment (please read guidance note 5) 
                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 
for boxing or wrestling entertainment at different times to those 
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance 
note 6) 
      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

020
Page 20



E 
 

Live music  
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Will the performance of live music take place 
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 
(please read guidance note 3)   
 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 1200 2300 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 
      

            

Tue 1200 2300 

            

Wed 1200 2300 State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music 
(please read guidance note 5) 
                  

Thur 1200 2300 

            

Fri 1200 2300 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 
for the performance of live music at different times to those 
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance 
note 6) 
      

            

Sat 1200 2300 

            

Sun 1200 2300 

            
 

021
Page 21



F 
 

Recorded music  
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Will the playing of recorded music take place 
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 
(please read guidance note 3)   
 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 1200 2300 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 
      

            

Tue 1200 2300 

            

Wed 1200 2300 State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music 
(please read guidance note 5) 
                  

Thur 1200 2300 

            

Fri 1200 2300 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 
for the playing of recorded music at different times to those 
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance 
note 6) 
      

            

Sat 1200 2300 

            

Sun 1200 2300 

            
 

022
Page 22



G 
 

Performances of 
dance 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 
 

Will the performance of dance take place 
indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 
(please read guidance note 3)   
 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 
      

            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance 
(please read guidance note 5) 
                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 
for the performance of dance at different times to those listed in 
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 
      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

023
Page 23



H 
 

Anything of a similar 
description to that 
falling within (e), (f) or 
(g) 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be 
providing 
      

Day Start Finish Will this entertainment take place indoors or 
outdoors or both – please tick (please read 
guidance note 3)  

Indoors  

Mon             Outdoors  

            Both  

Tue             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 
      

            

Wed             

            

Thur             State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar 
description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)  (please read 
guidance note 5) 
      

            

Fri             

            

Sat 
            

Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 
for the entertainment of a similar description to that falling 
within (e), (f) or (g) at different times to those listed in the 
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 
      

            

Sun 
            

            

 

024
Page 24



 I 
 

Late night 
refreshment 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 
 

Will the provision of late night refreshment 
take place indoors or outdoors or both – 
please tick (please read guidance note 3)   
 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4) 
      

            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night 
refreshment (please read guidance note 5) 
                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 
for the provision of late night refreshment at different times, to 
those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read 
guidance note 6) 
      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

025
Page 25



J 
 

Supply of alcohol 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 

Will the supply of alcohol be for 
consumption – please tick (please read 
guidance note 8)   
 

On the 
premises  

Off the 
premises  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 1200 2300 State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please 
read guidance note 5) 
                  

Tue 1200 2300 

            

Wed 1200 2300 

            

Thur 1200 2300 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 
for the supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the 
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 
      

            

Fri 1200 2300 

            

Sat 1200 2300 

            

Sun 1200 2300 

            
 
State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as 
designated premises supervisor (Please see declaration about the entitlement to work in the 
checklist at the end of the form): 
 

Name Chris Orr 
Date of birth                               
Address 

 

Postcode  
Personal licence number (if known) 
2021/03731/02SPEN 
Issuing licensing authority (if known) 
Southampton City Council 

 
 
 

026
Page 26



K 
 

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or 
matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of 
children (please read guidance note 9). 
N/A 

 
L 
 

Hours premises are 
open to the public 
Standard days and 
timings (please read 
guidance note 7) 
 

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 5) 
      

Day Start Finish 

Mon 0900 2300 

            

Tue 0900 2300 

            

Wed 0900 2300 

            Non standard timings.  Where you intend the premises to be 
open to the public at different times from those listed in the 
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6) 
      

Thur 0900 2300 

            

Fri 0900 2300 

            

Sat 0900 2300 

            

Sun 0900 2300 

            

 
 

027
Page 27



M  
 
Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives: 
 
a) General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance note 10) 

1. The prevention of crime and disorder. 
 
2. Public safety - we will not be open to the public, only invited guests but safety will still be 
paramount. We will have restricted numbers to prevent overcrowding. We have fire regulations 
and proceedures in place and all visiotrs will be briefed. We have an accident book and first aid 
on site and all events if any will be recorded. 
 
3. The prevention of public nuisance - we are detached and a remote location. We have thick 
stone walls and no ground floor windows resuting in it not being evident that people are in the 
building. We will put clear gudielines in place for leaving the premises, giving respect to the 
immediate cemetery surroundings and the neighbouring property. 
 
4. The protection of children from harm - we do not anticipate events involving children with 
this being exclusively a business event premises. 
 
We are not and will not primarily be about drinking, we are not a drinking establishment, we 
are looking to gain the necessary license to rent the space for events and allow the consumption 
of alcohol.  

 
b) The prevention of crime and disorder 

All visitors will be in relation to business events, and not the general public, this subsequently 
will reduce the possibility of disorder. Cameras are installed and visible within the premises as 
a record and a clear deterrant.  

 
c) Public safety 

We will not be entertaining the general public, it is just guests of business events. Safety 
briefings will be supplied in relation to health and safety, fire and accident regulations to any 
businesses renting the space for an event. 

 
d) The prevention of public nuisance 

We have thick stone walls and no ground floor windows resulting in it not being evident that 
people are in the building. We will put clear guidelines in place for leaving the premises, 
giving respect to the immediate cemetery surroundings and the neighbouring property. 
Typically expected events will be buiness gatherings and committee meetings from 6pm to 8 or 
9pm, with limited amounts of alcohol. We are not and will not primarily be about drinking, we 
are not a drinking establishment, we are looking to gain the necessary license to rent the space 
for events and allow the consumption of alcohol.  

 

028
Page 28



029
Page 29



030
Page 30



031

P
age 31



Please see below.

Many thanks,

Business Support Officer
Business Support Services
Legal and Business Operations
Southampton City Council

-----Original Message-----
From: 
Sent: 13 December 2021 19:55
To: Planning 
Cc:

Subject: Planning application 2021/03910/01SPRN The Design Chapel in Southampton Old Cemetery

Dear Sir,

I write to object strongly to this application for a licence to sell alcohol and play music in a former chapel and
listed building situated in a revered place of rest in Southampton.

The opening hours requested by the applicants make clear that their intention is to open a public house, which
would be totally inappropriate within  the setting of the cemetery. It would also be unnecessary, because there
are also two other pubs/ restaurants within 10 minutes walk, but outside the cemetery limits. Other problems ,of
parking and late-night noise, would follow, to the disturbance of wild life  in this wooded area and local
residents just beyond.

I feel it important to note also that there has been little publicity about this application, compared with that
about recent changes to traffic in Hill Lane.    It has also not been possible to view the application on your
website for a while. This should be kept in mind if responses to the application are few.

Yours sincerely,

Alan French
19 Atherley Court,
Shirley,
Southampton
SO157NG

032
Page 32



034
Page 33



035
Page 34



036
Page 35



037
Page 36



From:
To: Young  Tricia
Subject: RE: Objection - Licencing Application 2021/039101SPRN
Date: 13 December 2021 18:02:20
Attachments: image001.jpg

image002.png
Importance: High

Thank you for your email.
 
I am happy to provide the details as follows although note that I was not able to access the portal and the following message was displayed over
the weekend
 

so I was not able to  make my objection via the Public Access facility and on the notice provided it merely asks for details to be completed by
accessing the Public Access site and that the details in the notice make no reference to require details of an address to be provided. If it stated
that details of my address were required that would have assisted.
 
Submitted by Andrew Hetherton 352 Hill Lane Southampton SO15 7PH
 
Dear Sirs
 
I wish to make representations concerning the above application for a premises licence made by 3 Men Squared Ltd Design Chapel Cemetery
Road Southampton SO15 7AF
 
Investigations reveal that the premises also known as the Mortuary Chapel date back to the creation of a burial ground in 1846 and the a section
of the ground was consecrated by the Bishop of Winchester. Additional ground was allocated to non-conformist and at a later date a section was
also provided for the Jewish community,
 
Planning permission for use as offices as opposed to a church was sought and in May 2015 conditional approval was granted
 
Considering the planning application and the report from officers at the time the site was described a very quiet location and the development
was undertaken to avoid the building deteriorating further but balanced with the need to avoid unnecessary intrusion into the peace and quiet
of the surrounding graveyard.
 
The application seeks to provide live music and the supply by retail of alcohol between the hours of 12.00 and 23.00
 
I write to express my concerns about the use of the property as licenced premises as it seems that the proposed activities are out of keeping
with the site as a burial ground and sanctuary for peace and quiet much enjoyed by residents and visitors. Access to the site is somewhat limited
as is parking. I have concerns about the impact of the proposed licence not only on nearby residents on Hill Lane but also to residential
properties off Northlands Road.
 
I would therefore wish to draw attention to the guidance in considering such matters:
 
Licensing must carry out its functions with a view to promoting the four licensing objectives. These are: the prevention of crime and
disorder; public safety; the prevention of public nuisance; and the protection of children from harm.
 
Based on these criteria I would be concerned about the prevention of public nuisance in a public setting especially when it comes to the setting
being a grave yard and location where remembrance of disasters such as the sinking of the Titanic coupled with the use by many residents and
visitors of Southampton Common for quiet reflection and walks. The hours of operation are likely to impact on this and result in disruption in the
locality. There must also be concerns about the impact of accessibility both in terms of loss of amenity for existing users and how the proposed
use take up valuable parking spaces for those who currently use the Common.
 
I would be grateful if clarification concerning planning permission. Would it be right to assume that under new planning guidance issued in 2020
that permission for a change of use is not needed and also that had the previous classes remained that a change of use application would have
been required ? It seems that the proposed new use has evolved over a period of time and that what is now envisaged is not something that was
considered when the original consent for conversion from
 
 
 
 

038
Page 37



039
Page 38



041
Page 39



042
Page 40



Page 41



in and around Southampton Old Cemetery, I strongly OBJECT to you granting
permission for this application. A cemetery chapel is a totally unsuitable site for
alcohol fuelled noisy entertainment, which will desecrate the environs of the
chapel.
 
I strongly urge you to refuse this application
 
Yours faithfully
 
Mrs A Grimble

044
Page 42



045
Page 43



046
Page 44



From: Barbara Claridge
To: Young, Tricia
Subject: Re: Objection to Application for a Premises Licence 2021/03910/01SPRN
Date: 14 December 2021 09:46:12
Attachments: image001.png

Hello - I apologise for that - when I was on your website I was logged
on as Secretary of HRA.

Here is my address:

Mrs Barbara Claridge - Secretary, HRA, 
Apartment 1 Towan Place, 11 Westwood Road,
Highfield,
Southampton SO17 1DL

Thank you

Barbara 

On Tue, 14 Dec 2021 at 09:24, Young, Tricia <Tricia.Young@southampton.gov.uk>
wrote:

Ms Claridge

 

Thank you for your representation but you have not given your address.  Can you please
e-mail this to me today otherwise I will have to deem your representation invalid.

 

Thank you

Tricia Young

Licensing Officer

Please note I am only in the office on Monday, Tuesday and Thursday at the present time

Southampton and Eastleigh Licensing Partnership

Southampton City Council

 

Post: Licensing – Southampton City Council

         Civic Centre Southampton SO14 7LY

047
Page 45



048
Page 46



confirmation of receipt.

 

Regards

Barbara Claridge

 

Mrs Barbara Claridge - Secretary, HRA

049
Page 47



050
Page 48



Page 49



052
Page 50



053
Page 51



All personal data we collect is processed in accordance with our privacy notice, which is available 

054
Page 52



055
Page 53



056
Page 54



Caroline Roe

15 Atherley Court
Southampton 
SO15 7NG

Sent from my iPad

057
Page 55



058
Page 56



060
Page 57



Page 58



From:
To: Licensing
Subject: Ref 2021/03910/01SPRN
Date: 12 December 2021 17:53:07

Dear Sirs
I would like to protest against the above application. I think the cemetery is not a suitable place for a bar with
music 12 hours a day every day. I believe that some people are still being buried there in family graves. The
cemetery has a lot of history and is a quiet place for contemplation.
My address is 67 Blenheim Avenue, Highfield, Southampton. SO171QS

Dawn Chiari

Sent from my iPad

062
Page 59



063
Page 60



065
Page 61



From:
To: Licensing
Subject: Licensing website enquiry
Date: 09 December 2021 08:11:13

CAUTION: This email originated from a non UK Government address. Do not click links or
open attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

Name: DEREK BROWNING

Email address: 

Phone number: 

Premises name/vehicle plate number: Design Chapel Cemetery Road Southampton

Licence reference number: 2O21/03910/01SPRN

Message
I wish to object to this application as I believe it will create traffic and parking problems
in Cemetery Road and this site should remain as it is .this area is one of the few areas
in Southampton that is as close to nature as it can get and is an area used by many
people to just come and walk or sit in a tranquil setting. It is somewhere that is unique in
this city and should be preserved as it is. My feelings are that if the above premises is
aloud a drinks licence it will become yet another area to avoid because of public
disturbance. Regards Derek Browning

066
Page 62



067
Page 63



068
Page 64



069
Page 65



notion of 'culture'. Its secluded site implies dangerous closing times, particularly for
women, who will be trying to get home through darkened lanes.

With respect,

Dr M. Chiari
Citizen of Southampton
9 Highcliff Avenue
Southampton
SO14 0TN

070
Page 66



071
Page 67



072
Page 68



073
Page 69



074
Page 70



075
Page 71



076
Page 72



cultural, environmental and historical heritage, and it feels critical for Southampton City
Council to bring together a safeguarding policy for the cemeteries that are under their
‘peaceful management’.
Especially in light of recent national events, it feels appropriate to encourage a place of
safety for families, children, those who are vulnerable, and women, and to safeguard the
purpose of the cemetery for which a licensing application has been made, as a place for
the bereaved and preserving safety of sacred grounds.
In addition, the cemetery provides a place of refuge for peace and reflection and
appreciation of nature in the middle of a busy and noisy city, and this offers great value to
families and vulnerable people, especially in these times of Covid-19, and is an asset that is
aligned with the proposal of Southampton as a City of Culture and should be protected as
such.
For all these reasons, supported by the messaging of Southampton City Council itself, I
write to oppose the grant of a licence and would value further protection for
Southampton’s cemeteries through a ‘Safeguarding Policy’ that retains the purpose and
protection of the grounds and buildings, and prioritises the safety of families, children and
vulnerable people, respecting the hallowed ground and continuing use as a burial site.
Yours respectfully,
Elizabeth Roles
47 York Road
Shirley
Southampton
SO15 3G

077
Page 73



078
Page 74



079
Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



084
Page 79



085
Page 80



From: hazel brook
To: Licensing
Subject: Reference 2021/03910/01SPRN
Date: 11 December 2021 10:34:05

Dear Sirs,
With reference to the application for a Premises License to The Design Chapel, Old Cemetery SO15 7AF

I am writing to object to this license on the grounds that it is holy inappropriate to have alcohol drinks sold in a
sacred burial area. I have relatives buried in that cemetery and I go there weekly for exercise and solace. If there
were groups of inebriated people and music disturbing  the peace I would not walk anywhere near that area.

One of my relatives was an Alderman of Southampton; a respectable, upstanding member of the town and I am
abhorrent to the idea of intoxicated people stumbling over his grave finding somewhere to relieve themselves on
their way home!

This area is a wildlife refuge, it doesn’t need any more disturbance. Please do not allow this disrespectful act.

Yours sincerely
Mrs H J Brook
16 Wilton Crescent
Upper Shirley
Southampton
SO15 7QP

Sent from my iPad

086
Page 81



From: White, Heather
To: Licensing
Cc: Zambra, Rosie
Subject: Design Chapel Application - reference 2021/03910/01SPRN
Date: 10 December 2021 14:43:39
Attachments: image002.jpg

Hello
Please accept the email below as representation against the above application at Southampton Old
Cemetery.
Mrs Rosie Zambra
Head of Service – Consumer Protection and Environmental Services
Southampton City Council
Room 164 West Wing
Civic Centre
Southampton.
SO14 7LY
Mrs Heather White
Service Manager Bereavement Services
Southampton City Council
Southampton Crematorium
Bassett Green Road
Southampton
SO16 3QB
Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003 Application number-
----2021/03910/01SPRN
Design Chapel, Cemetery Road, Southampton SO15 7AF
As Head of Service for Consumer Protection and Environmental Services and as the Service Manager
for Bereavement Services we wish to submit an objection to the following licensing application.
We consider this application will not be in the interest of Public Safety and The Prevention of Public
Nuisance.
The lease dated 28 July 2002 stipulates under “User” 4.5.8; that the premises are not be used for the
purpose of (d) “for the sale of alcoholic drinks or any similar purpose” and (e) “any purpose or in any
manner which shall be inconsistent with a previously consecrated building situated within a cemetery”
and (f) any use which is in the reasonable opinion of the Council will become a nuisance, annoyance or
disturbance to users and visitors of the cemetery and occupiers of adjacent properties”.
The prevention of Public Nuisance
The Conformist Chapel at Southampton Old Cemetery is situated within the grounds of the cemetery
immediately behind the Cross of Sacrifice, which signifies that, within the cemetery, there are burials
from both World Wars, the cross to the design of Sir Reginald Blomfield, one of the Imperial War
Graves Commission’s architects, was placed there after the First World War and each year on
Remembrance Sunday have wreaths laid to remember all war dead. The chapel is also very close to
burials and headstones of unique interest such as the Pearce Memorial and Grade II listed structure,
with its fine sculpture representing Faith, Hope and Charity over the grave of Robert Pearce, a banker
who died in 1861. General Juan Manual de Rosas memorial which is featured on FOSOC guide walks,
the memorial of Captain George Smith R.N. who died in 1850 is a unique memorial featuring an
upside-down boat, representing a paddle box lifeboat to commemorate the first commander of HMS
Excellent the Royal Navy School of Gunnery at Portsmouth and the Boer War Memorial, which are all
visited regularly by cemetery users/visitors. The burial areas are designated as consecrated ground so
their proximity to this venue is of concern in relation to patrons using this premises not respecting this
area.
Public Safety and The prevention of Public Nuisance

087
Page 82



088
Page 83



Page 84



090
Page 85



I look froward to hearing back from you.
Regards
Ian Warrington

28 Atherley Court, SO157NG

From: 
Date: 10 December 2021 at 14:46:24 GMT
To: 
Subject: Fwd: Application for Drinks licence

Hello Neighbours

Alex has been advised of a planning application for the Old
Chapel in the Cemetery.

Alex and I have objected as follows, you may wish to or not for
other reasons.

Apparently the deadline for comment is Monday 13th December,
but there seems to be nothing on the council website about it, ??
just a notice on the gates.

David Scott No16.

To: 
Sent: Friday, 10 Dec, 2021 At 14:26
Subject: 

I should like to object to the application for music and drinks
licence for the following:

Application no: 2021/03910/01SPRN

Three Men Squared Ltd

Design Chapel

SO15 7AF

My three objections are:

1 The Anglican Chapel is a valued listed building in a Victorian
graveyard. This application goes against these original
characteristics. It is near the Cross of Sacrifice and is in a quiet
and dignified corner of the graveyard

2 There could be disturbance to wildlife. Increased noise levels
and lighting after dark may affect the roosting bat population.

3 Car parking and noise disturbances after 11 pm in neighbouring
residential roads

091
Page 86



My name and :address:

Mrs Alexandra Scott

16 Atherley Court

SOUTHAMPTON SO15 7NG

It is a shame it has been impossible to find this application on
your website. I had to go over to the Chapel to investigate.

092
Page 87



093
Page 88



From: Jenny Dawes
To: Licensing
Cc:
Subject: Licence Application 2021/03910/01SPRN
Date: 12 December 2021 18:43:48

To whom it may concern
We write to make representation in respect of the above application- by 3 Men Squared Ltd for a premises
licence at the Design Chapel, Cemetery Rd Southampton.
While we acknowledge that the change of use to the chapel some years ago was done very creatively and
appropriately, we believe this to be a totally inappropriate application for the following reasons
1) The chapel is at the centre of a working cemetery and is located very close to the Cross of Sacrifice.
2) The Cross of Sacrifice is used regularly as a focal point to remember our war dead and at best seems
extremely disrespectful to create a situation which could mitigate against that.
3) If events are held in the chapel with alcohol and music, noise, disturbance and possibly litter could impinge
on the cemetery.
4) It would not be difficult to imagine that if an event were to be held in nice weather it would spill out onto the
grass in front and around the Cross. Anecdotally we understand that this did happen earlier in the year.
For information I have copied in Shirley councillors 

Yours etc
Jennifer and Geoffrey Dawes
31 Hanley Rd Southampton

Sent from my iPhone

094
Page 89



095
Page 90



Norman, J and Fleming, J (2021) "Utilising police knowledge and skills - experiences from police
practitioners studying a police specific degree", International Journal of Police Science and
Management, Online First
Brown, J and Fleming, J (2021) The Impact of changing working patterns for police officers and
police staff in England and Wales during the COVID19 lockdown, The Police Journal, Theory,
Practice and Principles (Special Issue - Police Wellbeing) Online First
Fleming, J., & Brown, J. (2021). Staffing the force: police staff in England and Wales' experiences
of working through a COVID-19 lockdown. Police Practice and Research, 1-18.

Wilkinson, J and Fleming, J (2021) 'Prisoner on prisoner drug searches in prisons in England and
Wales: 'business as usual'', Incarceration, DOI: 10.1177/26326663211015852 Online first

Fleming, J and Brown, J (2021) Policewomen's experiences of working during lockdown:
Results of a survey with officers from England and Wales, Policing: a journal of Policy and
Practice, Online first

096
Page 91



Page 92



098
Page 93



099
Page 94



From: Kate Martin
To: Young, Tricia
Subject: RE: 3 Men Squared Ltd
Date: 13 December 2021 22:46:40

My apologies for failing to provide my address. I am not accustomed to making this type of
objection

I live at 83 Dean Road SO18 6AQ and as I stated in my previous email, am a regular visitor to
Southampton Common.

As for the objectives, licensing a premises within a cemetery, far from public view after dark
fails to prevent crime and disorder. This is not on a well-lit street in the city centre or in a
suburb where the presence of other people acts as a deterrent to the commission of
crime. There is a considerable risk to the fabric of this old cemetery from those
inebriated and with scant regard to historical memorials. One could say that their( i.e.
the punters at this establishment) safety is at risk from the built environment in the
cemetery.

Sadly, in this case, the objectives you require seem limited. I can think of many reasons for
objecting, but they do not fall within the scope of your objectives

Kate Martin
 
 

From: Young, Tricia  
Sent: 13 December 2021 16:41
To: katemartin.bitterne 
Subject: RE: 3 Men Squared Ltd
 
Ms Martin
 
Thank you for your representation which has been deemed invalid for the following reasons:
 
Address not supplied
Licensing objectives not addressed.
 
If you wish to re-submit please note we need to received your e-mail before midnight on 13
December 2021.
 
The link below will give you more information on the licensing objectives.
 
https://www.southampton.gov.uk/business-licensing/licensing/licensing-act-2003/la03-reps/ 
Tricia Young
Licensing Officer
Please note I am only in the office on Monday, Tuesday and Thursday at the present time
Southampton and Eastleigh Licensing Partnership
Southampton City Council

 
Post: Licensing – Southampton City Council
         Civic Centre Southampton SO14 7LY
 

101
Page 95



102
Page 96



103
Page 97



104
Page 98



105
Page 99



106
Page 100



107
Page 101



should be suitable for families, children and vulnerable people in a way that respects the
cultural, environmental and historical heritage, and it feels critical for Southampton City
Council to bring together a safeguarding policy for the cemeteries that are under their
‘peaceful management’, also.
Especially in light of recent national events, it feels appropriate to encourage a place of
safety for families, children, those who are vulnerable, and women, and to safeguard the
purpose of the cemetery for which a licensing application has been made, as a place for
the bereaved and preserving safety of sacred grounds.
In addition, the cemetery provides a place of refuge for peace and reflection and
appreciation of nature in the middle of a busy and noisy city, and this offers great value to
families and vulnerable people, especially in these times of Covid-19, and is an asset that is
aligned with the proposal of Southampton as a City of Culture and should be protected as
such.
For all these reasons, supported by the messaging of Southampton City Council itself, we
write to oppose the grant of a licence and would value further protection for
Southampton’s cemeteries through a ‘Safeguarding Policy’ that retains the purpose and
protection of the grounds and buildings, and prioritises the safety of families, children and
vulnerable people, respecting the hallowed ground and continuing use as a burial site.
Yours respectfully,

Lizzi Lewis
Upper Floor Flat
4 Edward Road
SO15 3GZ

108
Page 102



From: Maggie Rance
To: Licensing
Subject: Application 2021/03910/01SPRN
Date: 13 December 2021 11:24:41

]

Dear Sirs, I am writing to express my opinion about the above application. In my view, it beggars belief that
any positive consideration be given to granting a license for music, live and recorded, and the retail sale of
alcohol in the historic cemetery. This part of the Common is the resting place for many of the City’s past
residents, and is a source of comfort and pleasure to many people every day. I feel privileged to live close by
and visit it regularly to enjoy peace and quiet contemplation  in a haven for flora and fauna.
My appreciation of the area is ,I know, shared by many.
If the license be granted ,the whole cemetery would be at grave risk of desecration, vandalism and abuse.
I urge you to reject this, and any other such applications.
                            Yours faithfully,    M. A.Rance
    12, Raymond Road, Shirley , SO155AJ

109
Page 103



110
Page 104



111
Page 105



From: Mark Meredith
To: Licensing
Subject: Reference 2021/03910/01SPRN
Date: 11 December 2021 20:00:12

Dear Licensing Team

re Reference 2021/03910/01SPRN

I wish to object to this planning application on the grounds that it is completely inappropriate, given the setting.
I would be extremely upset were  to have relatives buried close by.

Many people also use this part of the cemetery as a refuge for quiet and peaceful contemplation.

I love the idea - but just not here!

Best wishes
Mark

Mark Meredith
3 Northlands Gardens
Southampton
SO15 2NL

112
Page 106



113
Page 107



114
Page 108



115
Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Peter
SO15 7NP

)

118
Page 112



119
Page 113



Page 114



Ref 2021/03910/01SPRN As a long term resident of Southampton and a Professor
of Nutrition (retired) at the University Medical School I am writing to protest about
the plans for all day selling of alcohol etc at the old cemetery. Do we already have
enough health problems to deal with by our overstretched NHS without fuelling
them further(coronary disease, obesity, cirhhosis etc) not to mention the increase
in law and order issues our police have to deal with? This application should be
rejected to save our city and its overstretched health and law and order services.
Yours sincerely,
Professor Bob Grimble

121
Page 115



122
Page 116



space which should be respected at all times. 

Last, many, including my wife, have relatives buried in the cemetery who would 
be appalled by what is being proposed.

Yours sincerely

Roger Ottewill

15 Atherley Court

SO15 7NG

123
Page 117



124
Page 118



125
Page 119



should be suitable for families, children and vulnerable people in a way that respects the
cultural, environmental and historical heritage, and it feels critical for Southampton City
Council to bring together a safeguarding policy for the cemeteries that are under their
‘peaceful management’, also.
Especially in light of recent national events, it feels appropriate to encourage a place of
safety for families, children, those who are vulnerable, and women, and to safeguard the
purpose of the cemetery for which a licensing application has been made, as a place for
the bereaved and preserving safety of sacred grounds.
In addition, the cemetery provides a place of refuge for peace and reflection and
appreciation of nature in the middle of a busy and noisy city, and this offers great value to
families and vulnerable people, especially in these times of Covid-19, and is an asset that is
aligned with the proposal of Southampton as a City of Culture and should be protected as
such.
For all these reasons, supported by the messaging of Southampton City Council itself, we
write to oppose the grant of a licence and would value further protection for
Southampton’s cemeteries through a ‘Safeguarding Policy’ that retains the purpose and
protection of the grounds and buildings, and prioritises the safety of families, children and
vulnerable people, respecting the hallowed ground and continuing use as a burial site.
Yours respectfully,
Shirley Wakley
Jackie White
18 Evelyn Crescent
Southampton
SO15 5JE

126
Page 120



127
Page 121



128
Page 122



the appropriate channel for further expressing such a concern.

Thank you.

My details:

Dr Surender K Sharma
21 Shooters Hill Close
Southampton SO19 1FW

12 December 2021

129
Page 123



130
Page 124



132
Page 125



133
Page 126



SOUTHAMPTON HEBREW 
CONGREGATION 

Mordaunt Road, Southampton SO14 6FW 
  

President: Mr. Martyn Rose 
Secretary: Prof. Tim Sluckin 

email:   
Tel:  Shul:  

 

12 December 2021 
 

Licensing Team,  
Southampton & Eastleigh Licensing Partnership,  
Southampton City Council,  
Civic Centre,  
Southampton SO14 7LY 
 

Representations concerning  Application 2021/03910/01SPRN 
Application for a Premises Licence, 3 Men Squared Ltd. 

Design Chapel, Cemetery Road, Southampton SO15 7AF 
1. Timing: This application has only very recently been drawn to the attention of the synagogue 

through unofficial channels. Given the proximity of the closing date for representations, this 
document has therefore been drawn up with some haste, and the case is to some extent incomplete. 
We are disappointed that the Licensing Authority was not in touch with us directly, as we are clearly 
an interested party, as discussed below.  
 

2. Scope of objections: These representations relate to points of  general concern, and also points 
which concern the synagogue specifically.  

 
3. Cemetery environment: The premises concerned lie inside the grounds of the Old Cemetery. A 

cemetery is a place of commemoration for the dead, and in many cases (including ours) contains 
places regarded as sacred.  The proposed licensing hours include times at which visitors may be 
expected to be visiting the graves of deceased relatives.  In the absence of stringent mitigating 
measures, music and the possible presence  of intoxicated persons will have the effect of changing 
the character of the area.   

 
4. Old Jewish Cemetery: The premises in question lie within 50 metres of the Old Jewish Cemetery. 

The last burial in these grounds took place in 1974; the synagogue currently uses a dedicated “new” 
area in the Hollybrook Cemetery on Tremona Road. However, present and former members of the 
community regularly visit graves in the “Old Cemetery”. One of the chapels in this cluster (not, we 
believe, the premises for which an application has been made) was formerly the chapel used for 
Jewish funeral prayers.  The Old Cemetery is in addition of significant historical interest.     

 
5. Possible Desecration of Jewish graves:  The Licensing Team should be aware  that for Jewish 

Communities low levels (and sometimes not so low levels) of anti-Semitism unfortunately remain a  
continual problem. One manifestation of this antipathy towards Jews and Judaism is “desecration of 
graves”. In less serious cases, this involves daubing of graves with paint, and sometimes neo-Nazi 
slogans, and in more serious cases, involves wholescale uprooting of graves. This can cause not only 
distress, but also considerable restoration costs. Unfortunately there have been such occurrences in 
Southampton, in both the New and Old Cemeteries.  The Old Cemetery suffered  a  particular serious 

134
Page 127



 

2 
 

attack in 1991. The upshot was (a) there was a gratifying outbreak of public support (including an 
“anti-racist Demonstration” in our  support), and (b) the entry to the Old Cemetery was reduced  in 
size. The hedge surrounding the Old Cemetery  is now rather high, and the entry is very discrete, in 
such a way that (it was felt) that only visitors searching for a Jewish cemetery would be able to find 
it.   
 
However, if (essentially) a Public House  is  located less than 50 metres away from the Jewish 
Cemetery, these mitigating factors would probably no longer apply. We are of course not accusing 
the usual patron of a Southampton licensed establishment of either drunkenness or anti-Semitism. 
We merely say, that if there were an anti-Semitic individual who became intoxicated, our Cemetery 
would be a natural target. Although there are few such individuals, when one considers time periods 
of years the likelihood of this occurring becomes very high.   For us the price of this (relatively rare, 
but ever-present) event would likewise be very high.   Consequently this is a risk we would really 
prefer not to have to address.  
 

6. Planning considerations: We are aware that the Licensing Team does not explicitly deal with 
planning matters. However, we respectfully suggest that this application involves a planning 
element. As such,   we think that the application should also be considered by the relevant team.   
We focus the specific question by going back in time to the planning decision  for change-of-use of 
the chapel buildings. Suppose that at that time, the  proposal had been to turn one of the chapels 
into a public house. We venture to suggest that the proposal would have offended public decency, 
and would have been rejected out of hand.  

 

I or another senior member of the Jewish Community would be happy to appear in person to explain 
and amplify our concerns. 

 

Tim Sluckin (Secretary, Southampton Hebrew Congregation) 
47 Church Lane, Highfield, Southampton SO17 1SY.  

.      
  

135
Page 128



136
Page 129



From: Tony Kushner
To: Young, Tricia
Subject: RE: Application: Representations concerning Application 2021/03910/01SPRN Application for a Premises

Licence, 3 Men Squared Ltd. Design Chapel, Cemetery Road, Southampton SO15 7AF
Date: 14 December 2021 13:56:57

Dear Tricia
 
Thanks for this communication. 

 
History Department
University of Southampton
Southampton
SO17 1BJ.
 
With best wishes
 
Tony
 
Professor Tony Kushner
 
Sent from Mail for Windows
 

From: Young, Tricia 
Sent: Tuesday, December 14, 2021 8:50:14 AM
To: Tony Kushner 
Subject: RE: Application: Representations concerning Application 2021/03910/01SPRN
Application for a Premises Licence, 3 Men Squared Ltd. Design Chapel, Cemetery Road,
Southampton SO15 7AF
 

CAUTION: This e-mail originated outside the University of Southampton.

Prof Kushner
 
Please find attached your valid representation letter.
Tricia Young
Licensing Officer
Please note I am only in the office on Monday, Tuesday and Thursday at the present time
Southampton and Eastleigh Licensing Partnership
Southampton City Council

 

         
 
 

Page 130



138
Page 131



13 December 2021 
 
Licensing Team,  
Southampton & Eastleigh Licensing Partnership,  
Southampton City Council,  
Civic Centre,  
Southampton SO14 7LY  

Representations concerning Application 2021/03910/01SPRN  
Application for a Premises Licence, 3 Men Squared Ltd.  

Design Chapel, Cemetery Road, Southampton SO15 7AF 

 

Dear Licensing Team 

I am writing to oppose the above application in my position as both a citizen of Southampton but 

also as the secretary of the South Hampshire Reform Jewish Community which has its origins and 

deep roots in Southampton. 

At a general level this is unacceptable as the old cemetery is a much-loved space of calm and 

reflection in the city and provides immense benefit to Southampton in this respect. It is for many 

also a sacred space and of deep spiritual importance to so many of its people. 

The old cemetery is of immense historical and social significance and people of all faith and none are 

buried here. In this particular objection, I would point to the old Jewish cemetery which is very close 

to the old chapel for which this application is focused. Whilst the old Jewish cemetery is overseen by 

the Southampton Hebrew Congregation, we have members in common who are buried there, so 

have a particular concern. 

The old Jewish cemetery is one of the oldest in the UK and has especial historical importance, 

reflecting unique experiences. It has been subject to antisemitic vandalism on numerous occasions. 

In 1991 every tombstone was covered in Nazi style graffiti which gained much public protest and 

disgust. Less well known have been irreparable damage to many tombstones in a series of attacks. 

The proximity of the chapel, alongside the sale of alcohol over a long period would make the Jewish 

cemetery extremely vulnerable. The Council has a duty of care to make sure that the Jewish 

cemetery is kept from harm and if approved, this application would put it at risk. This would be 

against all the council’s commitment to diversity and inclusion. 

Thus for both general reasons of the public good and the specific need to protect the Jewish 

community and its heritage, I urge you to turn down this application. 

Yours sincerely 

Professor Tony Kushner 

Secretary, South Hampshire Reform Jewish Community  

 

 

 

 

139
Page 132



140
Page 133



16 Denham Close 
Winchester 

SO23 7BL 
 

13 December 2021 
 
Licensing Team,  
Southampton & Eastleigh Licensing Partnership,  
Southampton City Council,  
Civic Centre,  
Southampton SO14 7LY  
 
Representation concerning Application 2021/03910/01SPRN  
Application for a Premises Licence, 3 Men Squared Ltd.  
Design Chapel, Cemetery Road, Southampton SO15 7AF 

 

Dear Licensing Team 

I wish to oppose most strongly this licensing application, which would turn the old chapel into a pub 

by stealth. The cemetery has great historical and social significance, and people of all faiths and none 

are buried here. It is a much-loved space of calm and reflection in the city, and for many people also 

a sacred space of deep spiritual importance. It is unimaginable that a planning application to build a 

pub in this special location would ever be approved. 

I have a particular concern about the nearness of the chapel to the old Jewish cemetery. That has 

been subject to destruction and vandalism far too often in recent years and the sale of alcohol over 

a long period would make the Jewish cemetery extremely vulnerable. The Council has a duty of care 

to make sure that the Jewish cemetery is kept from harm and if approved, this application would put 

it at risk. This would be against all the council’s commitment to diversity and inclusion. 

The chapel and the cemetery are also of central importance to Southampton culture. Any 

application for Southampton to become the City of Culture could be severely damaged by a decision 

to disregard this heritage in this matter.  

As a long-time resident in Southampton until recently, and in the interests of the wider community 

beyond the City which is directly affected by anything jeopardising the cemetery, I urge you to reject 

this application. I would further press you to make sure that, should other applications be received 

in the future, affected communities are given proper notification. I understand that the Jewish 

communities in Southampton only learnt of this application by chance two days ago. 

Yours faithfully 

 

Professor Tony Stoller CBE 

16 Denham Close, Winchester, SO23 7BL 

 

141
Page 134



142
Page 135



From: Vicki Blow
To: Licensing
Subject: Objection to Alcohol and Music Licence at Southampton Old Cemetery Chapel
Date: 10 December 2021 19:25:46

Dear licensing
I wish to the object to the above mentioned application. It is wholly unsuitable and not in keeping with the
cemetery and the area at all. The cemetery itself is a part of the SSSI of Southampton Common, protecting
wildlife and nature as well as the plants and flowers.

Whilst the application may cover the chapel, recently there have been pizza vans hired to provide a party at the
front of the chapel, so I do not think the alcohol and  music would be limited to indoors, I can see already that it
would spill out into the cemetery grounds.

Apart from the litter and potential risk of damage to the headstones and buildings, the war memorials and the
benches, the cemetery itself exist purely for peace and quiet, somewhere that our loved ones can literally rest in
peace and I cannot see how that would be happening with seven days a week music, food and alcohol being
served on site.

There are many small businesses in Southampton already wanting trade, and I suggest those who want to create
one in the chapel look at buying some of the properties now abandoned in Southampton due to Covid, there are
plenty of business opportunities out there, but not in a place of peace, rest and natural protected environment.

I cannot think of a worse or more offensive idea than this planning application, and I object to it in the most
strongest way. I’m happy to give you my details and attend any public meetings on the matter. I am a life
member of FOSOC. The work we do to protect the heritage, history, plants, animals and memories of those in
both cemeteries has always been our main respectable concern and this application could not be more opposite
to what a Cemetery should be.

Vicki Blow
4 Riverbourne Court
62 Whitworth Crescent
Southampton
SO18 1GD

Kind regards

Vicki Blow MA BA (Hons)

143
Page 136



Licensing (Licensing and Gambling) Sub-Committee 

LA2003 and GA2005 procedure 

 

 

 

Procedure – Applications etc. under the Licensing Act 2003 or 
Gambling Act 2005 
1. A hearing will be held to decide applications, etc., under the Licensing Act 2003, where 

there have been relevant representations from one or more of the responsible 
authorities or other persons. The parties to the hearing will have the chance to be heard. 
They are also entitled to be helped or represented by another person if due written 
notice is given in advance. 

2. Hearings will take place before a Sub-Committee comprising three members of the 
Licensing Committee. One of these members will be elected Chair of the Sub- 
Committee for that hearing. 

3. Please note that for day time hearings the Sub-Committee will normally adjourn for lunch 
at 1:00 p.m. and that comfort breaks will be taken at the discretion of the Chair at 
appropriate points during the meeting. 

Preliminary matters 
4. The Chair will introduce those present. 
5. The Chair will check whether any of the Sub-Committee members has a “disclosable 

pecuniary”, “personal” or “pecuniary” interest. 
6. The Chair will check whether all the parties are present at the hearing, and if any are 

not, whether they have told the Council that they do not wish to attend or be 
represented. If any party who was expected to attend has not done so, the Sub- 
Committee will decide whether to hold the hearing in that party’s absence, or to adjourn 
it to another date. Hearings will be adjourned if the Sub-Committee considers  this 
necessary in the public interest, if that is possible. If the Sub-Committee decides to hold 
the hearing in a party’s absence, they will still consider any written information received. 

7. In the case of an application for variation or a new licence, the Sub-Committee’s legal 
advisor will ask the applicant or their advisor for confirmation that the required public 
notices have been displayed where they can conveniently be read from the exterior of 
the premises and that notice was given in a local newspaper within eleven working days 
of the day on which the application was received by the licensing authority. 

8. Normally, hearings will be open to the public. However, the Sub-Committee may exclude 
the public from the hearing (or part of it) if they think the public interest in doing so 
outweighs the public interest in having the hearing in public. If the public are excluded, 
any of the parties to the hearing, and/or anyone helping or representing them, may also 
be excluded. 

9. The Chair will propose a motion that the public and the press be excluded from the 
hearing while the Sub-Committee considers the matter. Ordinarily the legal advisor and 
democratic support officer will remain (see paragraph 30 (b) below). 

10. The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 provide an entitlement for 
the public to film, photograph and audibly record (“record”) public meetings. However, by 
virtue of Schedule 6, paragraph 58 of the Licensing Act 2003 and section 101 (15) of the 
Local Government Act 1972, Licensing Act 2003 hearings are not covered by the 
entitlement to film as of right. The Council’s general approach is to encourage openness 
and transparency in all its dealings and the general presumption is  that filming or 
recording of hearings shall generally be permitted where due notice has been provided 
in advance of the hearing. Nonetheless the following shall apply: 

144
Page 137



Licensing (Licensing and Gambling) Sub-Committee 

LA2003 and GA2005 procedure 

 

 

 

i) Filming / recording / photographing hearings shall only be permitted with the express 
permission of the Chair. Such permission may include restrictions to protect children, 
vulnerable persons or others that object to being filmed / photographed / recorded. 

ii) Requests to film / record / photograph should be made with sufficient notice  in 
advance of the hearing. Late requests may not be granted if there shall be a delay to 
proceedings as a result. 

iii) Every party to the hearing and any witnesses shall have the opportunity to object and 
those representations shall be considered by the Sub-Committee. 

iv) No filming, photography or sound recording shall be permitted of any person under 
18 years of age. 

v) No person shall be put under any pressure to consent to such and no payment for 
such consent shall be given. 

vi) The Chair shall have the final say as to whether any filming, photography or 
recording is allowed (including the extent to which permission is granted e.g. the 
parts of the meeting, the individuals concerned or the arrangement of the recording 
equipment). 

vii) All directions given by the Chair shall be fully complied with and the Chair shall have 
the absolute discretion to withdraw permission to film, photograph or record in the 
event the same causes an obstruction or interferes with the general conduct of the 
hearing, including the impeding of the giving of proper evidence. 

11. A party may have asked for someone else to appear at the hearing to make a point or 
points that may help the Sub-Committee reach a decision. It is up to the Sub-Committee 
to decide whether that person should be heard, although permission will not be refused 
unreasonably. Such a person is referred to as a “witness” in this procedure. 

12. Where application has been made, in advance of the hearing, that it should be 
conducted in private (e.g. by the Police in review or summary review proceedings) 
reports shall be prepared and presented as confidential so that the Committee can make 
a meaningful determination in accordance with Regulation 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 
(Hearings) Regulations 2005 to exclude the press and public. It is important to note that 
reports presenting Licensing Act 2003 matters are not required to be published in 
advance. However, certain limited information must be published in accordance with the 
Licensing Act 2003 (Licensing Authority’s Register) (Other  Information)  Regulations 
2005 and section 8 of the Licensing Act 2003. 

13. The Chair will then explain the procedure that will follow. 

General information on the conduct of the hearing 
14. Each party is entitled to: 

(a) Give further information in response to any point that the Council told them before 
the hearing they would like clarified; 

(b) With the permission of the Chair, seek clarification on any point by any other party; 
(c) Address the Sub-Committee. 

15. Members of the Sub-Committee may also seek clarification of any party or witness. 
16. At the Chair’s discretion, the Sub-Committee’s legal advisor may ask any questions he 

or she thinks are relevant. 

145
Page 138



Licensing (Licensing and Gambling) Sub-Committee 

LA2003 and GA2005 procedure 

 

 

 

17. Unless the Council has requested in advance that a particular point be clarified, new 
documentary or other evidence may not be submitted for the first time at the hearing, 
unless all the other parties agree. 

18. Members of the Sub-Committee will have read all the papers included in the agenda for 
the hearing before the hearing starts. The parties are requested not to spend 
unnecessary time repeating evidence which is already in the papers and which is not 
disputed. 

19. Evidence that is not relevant to the case, or to the promotion of the four licensing 
objectives, will be disregarded. 

Hearing Procedure 
20. If any party has asked permission for  a witness or  witnesses to appear, the Sub- 

Committee will decide whether they should be heard (see paragraph 10 above). 

21. All parties will be allowed a similar (and maximum) amount of time to put their case, and 
ask questions of other parties, subject to the Chair’s discretion to not hear repetitive 
matters or questions. 

The applicant 
22. The applicant for the licence (or their representative) or the applicant in review 

proceedings, may present their case. 
23. If the Sub-Committee permits, the applicant may call those witnesses whose names 

have been provided in advance to support their application. 

24. Where a group of witnesses wish to speak in support of the application for similar 
reasons, one person should, where possible, act as spokesperson for the whole group. 
The Sub-Committee may reasonably refuse permission for a witness to be heard if their 
evidence simply repeats points already made. 

25. The Chair will invite those making representations to seek clarification on any point 
made by the applicant. The Chair will decide in which order those  making 
representations will be invited to put their questions. 

26. Members of the Sub-Committee or the Legal Advisor, if so permitted by the Chair, may 
also seek clarification of the applicant or any of their witnesses. 

The representations 

27. Where there is more than one person making a representation, the Chair will decide the 
order in which they may put their case. If there is a representation from one or more of 
the responsible authorities, their representatives will normally be invited to put their case 
first. 

28. The following procedure will apply to each person making a representation in turn:- 
(a) The person making a representation (or their representative) may present their case. 
(b) If the Sub-Committee permits, the person making a representation may call those 

witnesses whose names have been provided in advance to support their objection. 

(c) Where a group of witnesses wish to speak in support of the objection for similar 
reasons, where possible, one person should act as spokesperson for the whole 
group. The Sub-Committee may reasonably refuse permission for a witness to be 
heard if their evidence simply repeats points already made. 

146
Page 139



Licensing (Licensing and Gambling) Sub-Committee 

LA2003 and GA2005 procedure 

 

 

 

(d) The Chair will invite the applicant to seek clarification on any points made by those 
making representations. 

(e) Members of the Sub-Committee or the Legal Advisor, if so permitted by the Chair, 
may seek clarification of those making representations or any witnesses. 

Summing up 

29. The Chair will invite each person making a representation to make a final statement or 
sum up their case. 

30. The Chair will invite the applicant to make a final statement or sum up their case. 

Sub-Committee’s decision 

31. 
(a) At the end of the hearing the Sub-Committee will move to private session whilst it 

considers the matter. 
(b) The Sub-Committee’s legal advisor will remain to provide legal advice and the 

democratic services officer will remain to record the decision. Details of any legal 
advice will be recorded and referenced in the decision and reasons. 

(c) The parties will be invited to wait to be informed of the outcome. 
(d) As soon as the decision is reached, the public and press will be invited to return to 

the room in which the hearing took place, and the Chair will announce the decision 
and the reasons for it. 

(e) If a room is available, the Committee may retire to deliberate and make its decision 
(f) All parties will be formally notified in writing of the decision and reasons as soon as 

possible. 
In most cases the Sub-Committee will announce the decision at the conclusion of the 
hearing. In certain cases where this is not possible due to time constraints  (and  the 
Hearings Regulations permit – Regulation 26 (1) sets out those hearings where delay is not 
possible) the decision shall be made within 5 working days beginning with the day of the 
hearing or the last day of the hearing. 

147
Page 140


	Agenda
	6 APPLICATION FOR NEW PREMISES LICENCE - DESIGN CHAPEL, CEMETERY ROAD, SOUTHAMPTON SO15 7AF



